NATIONS CCPR

: Distr.
Inter_nghonal covenant GENERAL
on civil and
.. . CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
political rights 29 July 1998

Original: ENGLISH

HUMAN RI GHTS COWM TTEE
Si xty-third session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 1685t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 22 July 1998, at 10 a.m

Chai r person: Ms. CHANET

later: M. BHAGWMATI
(Vi ce- Chai rperson)

later: Ms. CHANET
(Chai r person)

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT (conti nued)

Initial report of the forner Yugosl av Republic of Macedoni a

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 98-17023 (E)



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.05 a. m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT (agenda item 4) (continued)

Initial report of the former Yugoslav Republic of Macedoni a(CCPR/ C/ 74/ Add. 4;
CCPR/ C/ 63/ QY MKD/ 1)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the delegation of the forner
Yugosl av_Republic of Macedonia took places at the Conmttee table

2. M. TODOROVSKI (the fornmer Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia) said that his
country was a successor State to the former Socialist Federal Republic of
Yugosl avia and, as one of its constituent republics, had been a State party

to the Covenant since January 1971. However, the FYR of Macedoni a had adopted
a different approach fromthat of the forner SFRY to its obligations under

the Covenant, attaching greater inportance to individual human rights.
Accordingly, it had ratified the Optional Protocol to the Covenant and was in
the process of recognizing the jurisdiction of the Cormttee on the

El i m nation of Racial Discrimnation to receive and consider petitions by

i ndi vi dual s.

3. The FYR of Macedonia was committed to parlianmentary denocracy, defence
and pronotion of human rights, the rule of |aw and the operation of a market
econony. During the period of transition, it had made fundamental changes in
its political and econom c system overhauled the State institutions and
adapted its legislation to bring it into line with the Constitution. The
reform process, which had been | aunched at a tinme of great instability in the
region and under very difficult econom c circunstances, was still proceeding.

4, During the period covered by the report, the Macedoni an Assenbly

had adopted a Litigation Procedures Act, a package of electoral laws and a
Non- Gover nnent al Organi zati ons and Foundations Act. The Mnistry of Interna
Affairs had been successfully reorganized, the functioning of the police force
had been regul ated by nmodern | egislation and a Regul ati on on the Use of
Firearns in keeping with international standards had been prepared. Although
judicial refornms were well advanced, the judiciary and the penitentiary system
were still beset by financial and technical problens.

5. The nmedi a had devel oped rapidly during the previous two years, although
the linguistically restricted market, especially for the print nmedia, was an
obstacle to cost efficiency.

6. The | egal framework for the protection of ethnic mnorities net high

i nternational standards. It was based on several decades of pronotion of
mnority rights and, together with affirmative action, reflected a pernmanent
strategic conm tnment on the part of the FYR of Macedonia. Protection of the
rights of ethnic mnorities was a prerequisite for peace and stability both
within the country and in the region as a whole. The idea was to create a
soci ety whose menbers conbi ned a sense of belonging and integration with a
devel oped sense of individual freedom



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 3

7. Efforts were being made to involve nore wonen in high-I|evel
deci sion-nmaki ng. In June 1998, the Macedoni an Assenbly had adopted a
Decl aration on the Pronotion of Gender Equality in Decision-making Processes.

8. Wth a view to pronoting awareness of human rights, international human
rights treaties were w dely dissem nated and sem nars, round tables and study
visits were organized. To mark the fiftieth anniversary of the establishnment
of the United Nations, a collection of basic United Nations docunents,

i ncluding the International Bill of Human Ri ghts, had been published in
Macedoni an and the | anguages of the ethnic mnorities and, to mark the
fiftieth anniversary of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, a
collection of the six fundanental United Nations human rights treaties had
been published. Relevant docunents of the Organization for Security and
Cooperation in Europe (OSCE) had been published and a collection of Council of
Europe human rights treaties was being prepared. Human rights had been

i ncluded in educational curricula, fromprimry school upwards.

9. The bel ated subnission of the initial report was due to technica

factors related to the reformprocess. Despite the extrenely difficult
situation in the Bal kans, the FYR of Macedoni a had nmanaged to ensure continued
observance of human rights, a fact recognized in nost reports by international
nonitoring bodies. The process of formulating and inplenenting governnment
policy on the pronmotion and protection of human rights would remain fully
transparent, both donmestically and internationally. The FYR of Macedoni a was
al so committed to the principle of cooperating with the internationa

noni tori ng machi nery.

10. M. CELEVSKI (the fornmer Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia), responding to
paragraph 1 of the list of issues to be taken up in connection with the
consideration of the initial report (CCPR/ C/63/Q MKD/ 1), said that article 118
of the Constitution stipulated that international treaties ratified by the
Macedoni an Assenbly formed part of donestic |egislation and were applicable

by the domestic authorities. Their provisions could be invoked by individuals
before the courts. A separate chapter of the Constitution set forth human
rights and freedonms systematically along the same lines as the two

I nternational Covenants on Human Ri ghts.

11. Under article 2 of the Courts Act, courts were required to adjudicate on
the basis of the Constitution, donestic legislation and ratified international
treaties. International instrunents were published, on ratification, in the

Oficial Gazette.

12. Ms. JANJIC (the fornmer Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia), replying to the
qguestions in paragraph 2 of the list of issues, said that the Orbudsman and
hi s deputies were appointed by the Macedoni an Assenbly for a period of eight
years. Under the Orbudsman Act, the incumbent enjoyed i mmunity on the sanme
basis as a judge and his duties were declared inconpatible with other duties
and professions and with nenbership of a political party. Hs function was to
protect the constitutional and legal rights of citizens against violations by
the public authorities and his jurisdiction included the police and the

M nistry of Defence. He was barred, however, fromtaking action on cases that
were sub judice.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685

page 4
13. The Onbudsman obtai ned information fromthe authorities through
interviews and direct inspection of their work. 1In the event of a

viol ation, he could propose a repetition of a procedure, request the

Suprene Court to review an adm nistrative act, request a tenporary suspension
of execution, recomrend disciplinary procedures against an official, request
the Public Prosecutor to initiate |egal proceedings or reconmrend inprovenents
in the way the public authorities perfornmed their functions. The authorities
concerned were required to take action within 30 days.

14. The Onbudsman's work was publicized through his Annual Report, press
conferences and the daily newspapers.

15. Since the establishnment of the Orbudsman's Office on 3 July 1997, 205
conpl ai nts had been submitted by 337 citizens. |In descending order of
frequency, they concerned town planning, enploynment, the judiciary, housing,
social welfare, property rights and other areas. Decisions had been reached
on 83 conplaints to date.

16. Ms. GROZDANOVA (the fornmer Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia), responding
to paragraph 3 of the list of issues, said that international standards
regardi ng gender equality formed part of the Constitution. Although a high
percentage of wonen participated in all areas of public life, social attitudes
had not kept pace. |In view of the |egal presunption of gender equality, there
was little provision for affirmative action on the part of the authorities.
Wonmen accounted for between 40 and 45 per cent of governnment, adm nistrative
and judicial enployees but the nunber of wonen at the higher levels of the
deci si on-maki ng hi erarchy was decreasing. Only 2 out of 20 mnisters and 4
out of 120 Menbers of Parlianment were women.

17. Al t hough the Labour Relations Act had outlawed all fornms of gender
di scrimnation in enploynent, anomalies persisted in certain branches of
activity. At the national |evel, however, the proportion of wonmen in
enpl oynment was rel atively high conpared with other countries.

18. The National Conmittee for Inplenentation of the Platform for Action of
the Fourth World Conference on Wonen, conposed of representatives of
governmental bodies and wonen's non-governnmental organizations (NGOs),
endeavoured to achieve parity for women in society through the establishnent
of appropriate machinery and institutions. The Declaration on the Pronotion
of Gender Equality in Decision-making Processes woul d of fer val uabl e support
in that area. Some 200 wonen's NGOs played an inportant role in identifying
priorities and champi oni ng guaranteed constitutional rights for wonen.

19. In view of the country's commtnment to affirmative action in the area of
gender equality, the FYR of Macedonia would be pleased to act as host for the
forthcom ng Council of Europe mnisterial conference on equality between nen
and wonen. One of the topics on the agenda was gender bal ance in the

deci si on-nmaki ng process as a vital prerequisite for full denobcracy.

20. Ms. CVETANOVSKA (the former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia), responding
to paragraph 4 of the list of issues, said that, according to official
statistics, violence against wonen, and donestic violence in particular, did




CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 5

not exist in the FYR of Macedonia. However, information fromlawers with
experience of crimnal and di vorce proceedings and from heal th professionals
told a very different story.

21. The scal e of the problem had been underestimated and, as in the case of
other countries, it was often because the victinms thenselves were reluctant to
come forward. Energency “hot l|ines” had been receiving an increasing nunber
of anonymous calls concerning donestic violence, a devel opnent that m ght be
reflected in future in the official records.

22. The Humani tarian Associ ation for Emanci pation, Solidarity and Equality
of Wonen had nounted a canpaign to change attitudes to and pronote awareness
of donmestic violence. It had conducted an unprecedented survey with a viewto
establishing a correspondi ng database. Governnent ministries were actively
supporting such initiatives. The survey had found that 68 per cent of those
polled attributed violence to social factors, particularly financia
difficulties, social status, unenployment and psychol ogi cal probl ens.

Domestic violence was attributed primarily to al cohol and jeal ousy, but a

maj ority of respondents thought it was caused by a conbi nation of factors,

i ncludi ng drug abuse and probl ens of social status.

23. A broadly equal proportion of males and females - 31 per cent - had
experienced sone form of psychol ogical or physical violence. 1In the case of
wonen, the nost conmon perpetrators were their partners, followed by

acquai ntances and parents. Four per cent of respondents had required nedical
help after an assault. Action to counter such phenonmena i ncluded counselling
services, programes to prevent bullying, and educational measures and

di scussions to pronote awareness of gender equality. Proposals for the future
i ncl uded reform of |egislation, pronotion of equality of opportunity, action
agai nst stereotyping and provision of shelters for the female victins of
domesti c viol ence.

24, In the framework of the programme of activities of the Departnent for
the Pronotion of Gender Equality and a project sponsored by the United Nations
Devel opnment Programme (UNDP), a national wonen's information centre was to be
established. A National Action Plan was being prepared as a follow-up to the
Fourth World Conference on Wonen and woul d be conpleted by January 1999. It
woul d focus on the need to prevent donestic violence, particularly violence
agai nst wonen. Wonen's NGOs had played a mapjor role in consciousness-raising
and in encouraging the reporting of donestic violence by its victins.

25. M. STOJANOVSKI (the former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia), responding
to paragraph 5 of the list of issues said that a total of 531 nissing persons
had been reported in the period from 1993 to 1997. O the 358 who had been
traced, 18 had been found dead, and it had been established that three of them
had di ed by viol ent neans.

26. In 1996, conplaints against menbers of the police for overstepping their
authority had led to 72 disciplinary actions resulting in 16 dism ssals.

In 1997, 121 actions had been initiated resulting in 22 dism ssals. Between
the date of subnission of the report and 1 June 1998, rubber truncheons had



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 6

been used by prison officers to break up fights between innmates in eight
cases. Investigations by the Mnistry of Justice had not established any
over steppi ng of authority.

27. M. TODOROVSKI (the fornmer Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia), responding
to the questions in paragraph 6 said that, in the table contained in annex IV
to the report the figures for convictions for the crinmes of coercing a
confession or statement or maltreatnent while on the job related to official
persons only. Such persons would include nenmbers of the police and security
services as well as Governnent and court officials and menbers of the
mlitary. According to data obtained fromthe Statistical Ofice, none of the
offences listed in the table under unlawful deprivation of freedom had been
perpetrated by an official person.

28. He infornmed the Committee that a del egati on of the European Committee
for the Prevention of Torture and Inhuman or Degradi ng Treatnent or Punishnment
had visited penal establishnments in his country in May 1998 and had found no
evi dence of torture or of cruel, inhuman or degrading treatnent of inmates. A
series of sem nars had been organized for police and prison officials with a
view to preventing such treatnent from occurring

29. M. CELEVSKI (the forner Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia), responding

to paragraph 7, said that conditions of detention were regul ated by

articles 143 and 188 of the Law on Crimnal Procedure. Persons arrested

in flagrante delicto or persons arrested on suspicion of being perpetrators of
a crime had to be handed over to an investigating judge i mediately: if
detenti on was necessary to allowtine for establishing an alibi or for

coll ecting evidence, such detention was limted to 24 hours.

30. Roons used for detention had to nmeet certain safety, health and hygi ene
criteria, and any person detained |onger than six hours had to be provided
with food. All requests for |egal assistance were granted. Under the 1991
Constitution, the maxi mum period of pre-trial detention had been set at 90
days, but under a recent anmendnent that period had been extended to 180 days.
After the charge had been brought, detention could be prolonged only by the
decision of a court, a systemwhich ensured that the rights of persons
deprived of their liberty were given maxi mum protection.

31. Replying to the questions raised under paragraphs 8, 9 and 10 of the
list of issues, he said that the punishnment of solitary confinement was

i nposed only on prisoners who posed a serious threat to the security of the
penal establishnment and the safety of other inmates. It had been introduced
because under the penal system of the FYR of Macedonia, prisoners were kept
not in single cells but in conmunal quarters. Detainees could be kept in
solitary cells for a maxi mum of 15 days, and in solitary confinenent, which
was the severer punishment, for up to six nonths. Persons held under such
conditions enjoyed the sane rights as other prisoners with regard to exerci se,
receiving letters and newspapers, health care and educational activities. In
the course of the last 10 years, the punishment of solitary confinenent had
been i nposed only on the organi zers of the 1995 revolt, which had seriously
under m ned di scipline and caused consi derable material damage.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 7

32. Foreign nationals and statel ess persons convicted under the Law on the
Execution of Sanctions were held in the Idrizovo prison, which was the only
closed prison in the country. However, they could be transferred to the

sem -open section of the prison, and had the right to contacts with famly
menmbers and with the di pl omati c and consul ar representatives of their country.
There were currently 46 foreign nationals in prison in the FYR of Macedoni a,
but no statel ess persons had had to serve a prison sentence to date

33. A mnor could be sentenced to detention only for a serious crimnal

of fence, when the identity of the person concerned could not be established,
and when there were circunstances pointing to a risk of escape. In 1997,
2,743 prosecutions had been brought against mnors for crimnal offences, but
only 19 had resulted in detention. |In 12 cases, detention had been for

1 nmonth, in 4 cases, for 15 days, and in 3 cases, for 3 days or less. Mnors
were normally separated fromadults, the only exception being if it was judged
that the adult concerned woul d have a positive influence on the m nor.

However, there had been no case in the past five years of mnors being held in
the same room as adul ts.

34. M. Bhagwati, (Vice-Chairperson)., took the Chair

35. Ms. JANJIC (the fornmer Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia), responding to
paragraph 11 of the list of issues, said that the independence of the
judiciary in the FYR of Macedoni a was guaranteed by the Constitution. The
exercise of the office of judge was inconpatible with the exercise of any
other public office or profession, and a judge could not be a nenber of a
political party. Judges enjoyed imunity in the performance of their duties.

36. Candi dates for the office of judge had to be nationals of the

FYR of Macedoni a who had passed the bar exam nati on and had reached an em nent
position in the | egal profession. Five years' experience as a working |awer
was needed for appointnment as a judge of a court of first instance, 10 years
experience for appointnent as a judge of a court of second instance, and nore
than 12 years' experience for appointnent as a judge of the Suprene Court.

37. The right to a fair trial was |ikew se guaranteed by the Constitution,
and was ensured by the use of the adversarial procedure, which gave both
parties full freedomto present their argunments and to participate equally in
t he exam nation of wi tnesses and the subm ssion of evidence. The court, as an
i ndependent body, reached its conclusions on the basis of that evidence. It
was required by |aw, when handing down a sentence, to state how nuch of the
evi dence had been found proven and which elenments of it had been of decisive
significance in reaching the verdict.

38. A fair hearing was ensured by requiring that, at all stages of the
crimnal proceedings, the accused should have the same status as the
prosecutor and could not be forced to make a confession or to answer | eading
guestions. Confessions had only a very limted part to play in Macedoni an
crimnal procedure, a fact which helped to | essen the danger of the extraction
of confessions by force. The accused also had the right, at all stages of the
proceedings, to call for the exam nation of w tnesses, to submt evidence, and
to request that an expert opinion be given. He also had the right to question
the charge against him to appeal against the verdict of a court of first



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 8

i nstance, and to appeal to the Supreme Court for extraordinary |egal renedies.
The fact that the Covenant had become an integral part of the country's
donmestic law in itself guaranteed the right of the accused to a fair trial.

39. One reason for the slowness in conducting trials and the backl og of
cases was that many of the younger judges had been appointed only in 1996, and
needed sonme tinme for further study and specialization. O her reasons included
i nadequat e prem ses, the transfer of the conpetencies of higher courts to
courts of first instance, the abolition of |abour and comercial courts, and

i nconpl ete computerization. Recent |egislative reforms, including the

i ncorporation of international standards into donestic |aw, had also
contributed to delays in the processing of cases.

40. M. YALDEN said he had been particularly pleased to see that the report
contai ned conments on the State's actual performance in guaranteeing rights
under the Covenant and showed a refreshing willingness to admt to
shortconmings and to refer to the findings of NGOs on a nunber of issues.

41. He noted that the text of the | aw establishing the People' s Orbudsnman
was in line with that of corresponding statutes in other countries and asked
whet her the Onbudsman had jurisdiction in regard to other issues, such as
forms of discrimnation other than racial discrimnation. As for the private
sector, he would |like to know whether there was any agency other than the
courts to which persons could have recourse if they believed their rights had
been violated. The authorities mght consider setting up a national human
rights comm ssion with a specific mandate to deal with conmplaints from for

i nstance, the disabled, ethnic mnorities and wonen, in both the private and
public sectors.

42. He would like to be given a nore detail ed breakdown of women's
participation in the workforce, by |level of position (junior, mddle or
senior). It would also be useful to know whether any | egislation had been

enacted to guarantee equal pay for work of equal value. Apart fromthe
Departnment for Promotion of Equality Between the Sexes referred to in
paragraph 22 of the report, was there any independent body to pronote equality
for wonmen and to conbat discrimnation? Was there any |egislation governing
di scrim nation agai nst honpsexual s?

43. Wth respect to article 6 of the Covenant on the right to life, he said
that there was reason to believe that excessive use of force by the police in
an incident in Gostivar a year previously had led to the deaths of three
people and injuries to some 200 others. G ven the behaviour of the police

on that occasion, he would appreciate confirmation of the statement in
paragraph 44 of the report that, over a four-year period from 1993 to 1997,
there had been only one case of excessive use of force by the police. He
woul d also Iike to know what training was given to the police in the use of
force and in respect for the human rights of citizens.

44, Ms. Chanet resuned the Chair.

45. M. ZAKH A said he was glad to note that wonmen were well represented on
t he del egati on, and hoped that the fact reflected a policy of encouraging
wonmen to play an active role in political life.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 9

46. On the question of |egal capacity, the circunmstances under which courts
coul d decl are persons dead, as listed in paragraph 350 of the report, seened
to himunduly broad and open to misinterpretation and abuse. Wre any steps
taken to prevent the possibility of error? Nothing was said about any
procedures enabling a person declared dead to regain | egal capacity. What
nmeasures were taken to ensure that the interests of disappeared persons

decl ared dead were protected for a reasonable period? The issue was of great
i mportance in relation to the right to life and the right to recognition as a
person before the | aw.

47. The report stated that forced or fraudul ent marri ages could be annul | ed.
Did one of the spouses concerned have the right to demand an annul ment wi t hout
the consent of the other, and if so, did that not constitute an infringenent
of the latter's rights?

48. M. POCAR said the initial report of the FYR of Macedoni a had been

subm tted behind schedul e, but confornmed to the Comrittee's guidelines.

He wel coned the fact that the country had acceded to the Covenant as fromthe
date of its succession to the Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia. It
was | i kewi se encouraging that the FYR of Macedonia had signed the two Optiona
Protocols and entered no reservations to the Covenant. The Governnment m ght
al so, perhaps, consider accepting the provisions on inter-State procedures in
article 41 of the Covenant.

49. Concerning the legal framework for the application of the Covenant, and
with specific reference to article 118 of the Constitution, he would like to

know whet her a | aw that went against the terns of an international agreenent

coul d be deened unconstitutional and annulled by the Constitutional Court.

50. He had been informed that the Constitutional Court was engaged in
review ng existing |legislation, including the Law on Courts, with a viewto
aligning it with the Constitution. That was a very positive devel opnment,
especially in the context of the right to a fair trial. He would Iike to know
nmore about procedures before the Constitutional Court, which apparently played
a major role in protecting human rights. Could individuals bring cases
directly before the Court, and how were cases subm tted?

51. Article 54 of the Constitution, concerning states of war or energency,
spelled out the rights that could not be restricted in such situations,

i ncluding the “legal determ nation of punishable offences and sentences”.

How was that provision to be interpreted? Did it extend to all the aspects of
the right to a fair trial set out in articles 14 and 15 of the Covenant?
Article 54 of the Constitution contained nothing, however, to parallel the
requi rement of conformty to the “exigencies of the situation” laid down in
article 4 of the Covenant as a precondition for derogation fromthe

obl i gati ons under the Covenant. He would like the delegation to comment on
that fact.

52. M. KLEIN said he hoped that the current exercise would be the first in
a continuous process of efforts to foster human rights in the FYR of

Macedoni a. Since the country had ratified both of the Optional Protocols to

t he Covenant, he would like to know whet her there was any procedure for acting
on the views adopted by the Conmittee in connection with the First Optiona

Pr ot ocol



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 10

53. He associated hinmself with the questions asked by M. Pocar regarding
the Constitutional Court and would |ike nore information on how it operated
Experi ence had shown that the existence of such institutions went a | ong way
t owar ds guaranteeing the protection of human rights, particularly if they had
conmpetence to deal with individual conplaints. Wen States were undergoi ng
often difficult transitional periods, such institutions did nmuch to ensure
faith in the rule of law. It was therefore encouraging to see the inportant
role played by the Constitutional Court in the |egal system

54. The third paragraph of article 110 of the Constitution appeared to

i ndi cate that the Constitutional Court's conpetence to accept individua
compl ai nts was confined to certain fundanental rights cited in that paragraph.
He wondered whether that neant that individuals could not bring to the Court
compl aints of violations of the nunmerous other rights enshrined in the
Covenant. If so, he would Iike to know how the protection of those rights was
ensured by the Constitutional Court and whether, for exanple, the provisions
of the Covenant could be invoked before it. Article 118, which described

i nternational agreements as “part of the internal l|egal order”, would tend to
imply that they could not and that they could be brought up only before the
ordinary courts. He would be grateful for clarification of that point.

55. Referring to the provision in the third paragraph of article 50 of the
Constitution according to which a citizen had the right to be infornmed on
human rights and basic freedons, he asked what mechanisms were in place for
t he di ssem nation of such information.

56. Al t hough statistics on the prison popul ation were provided in

paragraph 220 of the report there was no indication as to whether overcrowdi ng
in the prisons was a problem as it was in many countries. Paragraphs 172

to 180 provided information on the regul ations governing the physical and
material conditions of life in prison, but he would like to know whet her those
normati ve provisions applied in practice. Mny countries had excellent prison
| egi slation but experienced difficulties in putting it into effect.

57. Ms. EVATT said she woul d appreciate clarification of the regime applying
to the rights of citizens as conpared with foreigners. Paragraph 9 of the
report said that the rights guaranteed by the Constitution were enjoyed by all
citizens over whomthe jurisdiction of the FYR of Macedoni a extended
“regardl ess of whether they were citizens”. That was somewhat perpl exing.

Par agraph 10 indicated that the “characteristic of a citizen is relevant only
inalimted nunber of cases”, and that, too, demanded an expl anati on. She
under stood that sonme problens had arisen with the right to citizenship of
persons of Al banian ethnic origin stenming fromthe requirenment of 15 years
residence in the FYR of Macedonia to qualify for citizenship. It would be
interesting to know how many people who had lived in the country since its
foundati on woul d be excluded fromcitizenship by the application of that

provi sion. Paragraph 234 of the report gave figures for persons not issued
passports because of “non-regulation citizenship status”; she wondered whet her
that was a phenonenon related to the 15 years' residence requirenent.

58. Turning to the rights of wonen, she noted that paragraph 110 of the
report dealt with prostitution, but she had seen no information as to whether
trafficking in womren was on the rise and, if so, whether programes were being
devel oped to deal with it.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 11

59. I nformati on provided by NGOs pointed to the exi stence of a practice
wher eby people were invited into police stations for “informative tal ks”.
An el ement, if not of physical intimdation, then at |east of duress, was
apparently involved, and no warrant was issued.

60. It had al so been reported that ethnic Al banians, particularly |eaders
of the Al banian community, were periodically taken to police stations,

i nterrogated, detained under harsh conditions and rel eased w thout being
charged. A nunber of Al banians had died in police custody, it was alleged,
foll owing such treatnment. She would wel come conments on those points.

61. Finally, she wi shed to know whether the individuals arrested in the
riots at Tetovo University in 1997 had been charged and how | ong they had been
held in detention.

62. M. EL SHAFEI said he agreed with M. Pocar that the accession by the
FYR of Macedonia to the two Optional Protocols and the fact that it had made
no reservations to the Covenant were wel cone devel opnments. He congratul ated
the country on achi eving independence in fulfilnment of its right to

sel f-determ nation.

63. He woul d |i ke to know how | ong a person could be held in custody for
questi oni ng, how conplaints of torture were |odged and investigated and what
was the penalty for torture. Was evidence obtained through illegal
interrogation adm ssible, and if not, what were the rules or safeguards
prohibiting such adm ssibility? How did the Governnent define illegal

i nterrogation? Were detainees exam ned by physicians, either before or after
interrogation? How was the validity of a confession ascertained?

64. He woul d |i ke to know how many detai nees had died in custody and whet her
the deaths had been investigated. Wat was the extent of loss of life at the
hands of | aw enforcenent agents? Was there a specific machinery for

i nvestigating such killings? Wat was the Government doing to resolve the
probl em of involuntary di sappearances? What safeguards were avail abl e agai nst
such di sappearance?

65. He requested an answer to the questions as to whether solitary

confi nement was possible as a formof detention, and if so, how | ong such
confinement could last. Wat were the grounds for placing a detainee in
solitary confinement? Under that neasure, was the detainee deprived of al
contact with the outside world, including famly nmenbers and counsel ? Was it
used as a common form of pre-trial detention? Did a detainee have the right
to appeal against an order for solitary confinement? Was the health of the
det ai nee nonitored by nedical staff? Ws the detainee's famly notified of
his or her state of health while in solitary confinenent?

66. In conclusion, he thanked the del egation for its answers to the
Committee's questions because they usefully supplemented the information in
the report which had little to say about the practical difficulties
encountered in the inplementation of the Covenant.

67. M. PRADO VALLEJO said that the initial report of the FYR of Macedonia
descri bed the principles governing human rights and outlined an array of
excellent legislation, but provided little information on actual practice.

In nost countries there was a gap between what was set out in the |egislation




CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 12

and what actually occurred in practice, and it was in that area that the
Commi ttee sought information. His colleague, M. El Shafei, had just posed a
number of highly specific questions, precisely because a great deal of the

i nformati on needed was not given in the report.

68. Referring to paragraph 47 of the report, he remarked that the right to
compensation in the event of death caused by intention or by negligence could
hardly be said to constitute | egal protection of the right to life, the nore
so as the procedure for obtaining conpensation would doubtl ess be a | engthy
one.

69. The section of the report concerned with torture gave details of the
applicable laws but did not nmention any specific cases. It would be useful to
know whet her any investigati ons had been carried out and the persons
responsi bl e brought to justice and puni shed. Paragraph 104 of the report
listed the renmedies available to victinms of torture but, there again, it would
undoubtedly take a very long time for the victimto obtain redress, especially
if he was still in detention.

70. Wth regard to the question of expul sion of a foreigner, paragraph 251
of the report described the procedure that had to be foll owed but did not
expl ai n what renedies were available to a foreigner who did not wish to be
expelled. In particular, an explanation of the reference to the possibility
of obtaining a pardon would be welconme. It would be useful to know what a
pardon signified in that connection, who was responsible for issuing it and
how the foreigner concerned could go about applying for it. The Governnent
comri ssion referred to in the second sentence of paragraph 253 would seemto
act as both judge and party, so that inpartiality in dealing with the
foreigner's appeal was not guaranteed.

71. M . ANDO t hanked the del egation of the FYR of Macedonia for its very
conprehensive witten report and its replies to the first part of the list of
i ssues. Associating hinself with M. Pocar's remark concerning the new
country's accession to the Convention, he remarked that, in the case in point,
the term “successi on” was probably applicable.

72. Wth regard to the Constitutional Court (paras. 16 to 18 of the report),
he asked the delegation to specify the precise scope of that Court's
jurisdiction and to explain howit differed froma Suprene Court. Could
ordinary citizens apply directly to the Constitutional Court or did they have
first to go through the ordinary courts? Was the Constitutional Court
entitled to pass judgenent only on the issue of the constitutionality of |aws?
Par agraph 16 of the report spoke of functions of the Constitutional Court in
connection with political association and activity, which would seemto
suggest that the Court was the suprene political organ in both private and
public matters. An explanation on that point would be appreciated. Referring
to the Constitutional Court's power to annul or revoke laws, referred to in
paragraph 18, he asked whether a |aw decl ared unconstitutional by the Court

i medi ately becane null and void as a result or whether the Court's decision
merely nmeant that the |aw had to be anended.

73. At the end of article 8 of the Constitution there was a statenent that
anyt hing not prohibited by the Constitution or by |aw was permtted in the
FYR of Macedonia. Such a rule appeared to be rather too sweeping. There were



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 13

surely social nornms or custons that were not spelled out in the Constitution
or the laws but that had nevertheless to be respected. An explanation of that
provision's inplications would be hel pful.

74. Lastly, he asked how | awyers were trained in the FYR of Macedonia, how
they qualified to practise, whether there was a national organization of
| awyers and how their fees were determ ned?

75. M. LALLAH having congratul ated the del egation on its country's good
and conprehensive report, said that, when the authorities of the FYR of
Macedoni a cane to prepare the second periodic report, they m ght perhaps bear
in mnd the provision in article 40, paragraph 2, of the Covenant requiring
that reports should indicate the factors and difficulties, if any, affecting
the inplenentation of the Covenant. It would, for exanple, be extrenely
interesting to |l earn precisely what provisions violating civil rights and
freedoms guaranteed by the Constitution had been revoked by the Constitutiona
Court in the “numerous cases” referred to in paragraph 18 of the report.

76. After associating hinmself with the questions addressed to the del egation
by M. EI Shafei and the remarks by M. Pocar and M. Ando comrendi ng t he
spirit in which the FRY of Macedoni a was approachi ng the obligations under the
Covenant to which it had succeeded upon its accession to sovereign status, he
said that the report did not go quite far enough in dealing with the basic
question of the enjoynent of all human rights in accordance with article 26 of
the Covenant. The inplications of the use in that article of the expression
“protection against discrimnation on any ground such as " did not seemto
be fully reflected in the system described in the report. By using the
expression “such as”, the drafters of the Covenant had deliberately left ample
roomfor the provision to be interpreted in the w dest possible way so as to
ensure that all persons were treated with humanity and dignity at all tines.

77. Li kewi se, where article 26 spoke of protection against discrimnation on
the ground of “political or other opinion”, article 9 of the Constitution of
the FYR of Macedonia used the nore restrictive expression “political and
religious beliefs”. Noting that the Constitution had already been anmended

twi ce, he remarked that those matters might, perhaps, be given sone thought
when the tine came to revise it for a third tinme.

78. M. BHAGWMTI said that the Governnment of the FYR of Macedonia was to be
especially congratulated on ratifying both the Optional Protocols to the
Covenant. Wth reference to the Constitutional Court, he asked the del egation
to confirmthat the rights enbodied in the Covenant could be enforced directly
in that Court. Could ordinary citizens and human rights NGOs go directly to
the Constitutional Court in order to challenge the validity of any |egislation
whi ch they found to be inconsistent with the rights enbodied in the Covenant?
Was there any machinery to exam ne whether existing laws were in conformty
with the Covenant? Could the Orbudsman exam ne the propriety of executive
action that was legally valid but inconsistent with the rights set forth in

t he Covenant, and could he nmake recomendati ons to the Governnment on that
score?

79. If the representation of wonmen in the judiciary was inadequate, as would
appear to be the case from paragraph 26 of the report, he wi shed to know what
steps the Governnment proposed to take in that connection. Noting that the

| abour courts had been abolished, he asked whether the ordinary courts were



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1685
page 14

henceforth required to settle | abour disputes and wondered whether they were
conpetent to do so. Wth regard to the question of pre-trial detention, he
asked what was the average length of tinme that a person could be detained
before being brought to trial. Wat steps were being taken to provide
education in human rights? Lastly, what was the situation with regard to
legal aid in civil as opposed to crimnal cases?

80. M. SCHEINI N said that he shared M. Pocar's concern regarding the
preci se status of the Covenant in the FYR of Macedonia. Noting that article 8
of the Constitution spoke of the “fundanental values of the constitutiona
order of the Republic of Macedonia”, he asked whether those val ues were al so
rights under article 50 of the Constitution.

81. Li ke M. Ando, though for a slightly different reason, he was concerned
about the | ast sentence of article 8 of the Constitution (“Anything that is
not prohibited by the Constitution or by lawis permtted in the Republic of
Macedoni a”). That provision seened to maeke no distinction between individuals
and public authorities. |If it applied only to individuals, there was no
problem but, in the case of public authorities, the opposite presunption
shoul d surely apply and the provision should be franed so as to indicate that
what was aut horized by the Constitution or by |aw could not be prohibited by
the public authorities.

82. In connection with paragraph 11 of the list of issues, he noted that
article 14 of the Constitution was apparently nodelled on article 15 of the
Covenant, while the first paragraph of article 13 of the Constitution was
simlar to article 14, paragraph 2, of the Covenant. However, the provisions
of article 12 of the Constitution seenmed very linmted in conparison to
article 14 of the Covenant; in particular, they failed to cover paragraph 3,
subparagraphs (d) and (g), of that article. According to the Internationa
Hel si nki Federation, there had been cases in which judges had denied the right
to call defence witnesses to defendants who were nenbers of political parties.
He wi shed to know, therefore, whether the provisions of article 14,

par agraph 3, subparagraph (e), of the Covenant were applied in the Macedoni an
courts.

83. In connection with the Iast part of paragraph 12 of the list of issues,
he nmentioned an incident in June 1996 reported by the International Helsinki
Federati on when 226 human rights docunents emanating frominternationa

organi zations, including the United Nations, had been confiscated at the
Macedoni an border from nenbers of the Al banian Helsinki Committee. In
Decenber 1996, 255 religious books had, reportedly, been confiscated at the
border from a Macedonian citizen who was a Jehovah's Wtness. He requested
further clarification of the procedure and criteria enployed for the denial of
access to foreign publications.

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




